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NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MARIETTA CITY COUNCIL 
 

Tuesday, May 09, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

Marietta Municipal Building, 700 S. Highway 77, Marietta, Oklahoma 73448 
 

BUSINESS TO BE CONDUCTED (which may include discussion, consideration, action for approval or 
disapproval, voting to take any appropriate action, and the revision, amendment and passage of 
resolutions on the following agenda items): 

CALL TO ORDER. 

ROLL CALL AND DECLARATION OF QUORUM. 

INVOCATION. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

CONSENT AGENDA. 

All matters listed under this section are considered by the City Council to be routine and will be enacted 
by one motion and vote.  Any council member may, however, remove any item from the consent agenda 
by request.  

1. Approval of the agenda as part of the minutes. 

2. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting on April 11, 2023. 

3. Approval of financial reports. 

4. Approval of purchase orders and expenditures from the following accounts/funds, if any: general 
fund; sanitation fund; cemetery care fund; expense account; grant fund; police asset forfeiture 
account; payroll account. 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA. 

Any matter removed from the consent agenda at the request of a council member will be considered 
separately. 

CORRESPONDENCE. 

This is an opportunity for the city council to review any received correspondence. No action will be 
taken.  

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION. 

This is an opportunity for citizens to address the city council.  Remarks will be addressed to the 
governing body as a whole.  Any issues presented will not be further discussed by the city council or 
the mayor at this meeting.  Comments must be limited to three minutes or less. 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT. 

The City Administrator will provide updates regarding recent and upcoming events and projects, and 
general operations of the City. No action will be taken.  

1



Agenda - Regular Meeting  
May 09, 2023 

Page 2 of 2 

REGULAR BUSINESS. 

1. Presentation of financial audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.  

2. Presentation of budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024, pursuant to 11 O.S. Section 9-
105.5. 

3. Consideration and possible action relating to the update of signatories for the City of Marietta 
financial accounts. 

4. Appointment of Dottie Gwin to the Southern Oklahoma Library System Board of Trustees. 

5. Appointment of Scott Chaney to serve as a member of the Board of Directors of the Southern 
Oklahoma Regional Disposal, Incorporated. 

6. Executive session to discuss the hiring of Alfredo Torres as a Police Officer, and the hours, 
duties, compensation, and benefits for said position, pursuant to Title 25 Oklahoma Statutes, 
Section 307 B (1). 

7. Executive session to discuss the employment of employee, Selina Barrientos,  and also the 
employment of employee, Jerry Fox,  and the hours, duties, compensation, and benefits of 
both employees, pursuant to Title 25 Oklahoma Statutes, Section 307 B (1). 

8. Consideration and possible action relating to the appointment of Alfredo Torres as a police 
officer, as well as the hours, duties, and pay for said position.  

9. Consideration and possible action relating to the employment of Selina Barrientos, and the 
hours, duties, compensation, and benefits of said employee. 

10. Consideration and possible action relating to the employment of Jerry Fox and the hours, 
duties, compensation, and benefits of said employee. 

NEW/UNFORESEEN BUSINESS. 

Discussion and possible action with respect to any matter not known, or which could not have been 
reasonably foreseen, prior to the time of posting this notice and agenda. 

MAYOR'S COMMENTS. 

The Mayor will provide updates regarding recent and upcoming events and projects, and general 
operations of the City. No action will be taken. 

ADJOURN. 

NOTICE OF POSTING: 

I, the undersigned Clerk of the City of Marietta, certify that the foregoing Notice and Agenda of the 
Regular Meeting of the Marietta City Council was posted in prominent public view at the Marietta 
Municipal Building, located at 700 S. Highway 77, and online at www.mariettaok.city, at 5:00 o'clock 
p.m. on Friday, May 5, 2023. 

   

 

 

Scott Chaney, Deputy City Clerk 

Dottie Gwin, City Clerk 
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NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MARIETTA CITY COUNCIL 
 

Tuesday, May 09, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

Marietta Municipal Building, 700 S. Highway 77, Marietta, Oklahoma 73448 
 

BUSINESS TO BE CONDUCTED (which may include discussion, consideration, action for approval or 
disapproval, voting to take any appropriate action, and the revision, amendment and passage of 
resolutions on the following agenda items): 

CALL TO ORDER. 

ROLL CALL AND DECLARATION OF QUORUM. 

INVOCATION. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

CONSENT AGENDA. 

All matters listed under this section are considered by the City Council to be routine and will be enacted 
by one motion and vote.  Any council member may, however, remove any item from the consent agenda 
by request.  

1. Approval of the agenda as part of the minutes. 

2. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting on April 11, 2023. 

3. Approval of financial reports. 

4. Approval of purchase orders and expenditures from the following accounts/funds, if any: general 
fund; sanitation fund; cemetery care fund; expense account; grant fund; police asset forfeiture 
account; payroll account. 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA. 

Any matter removed from the consent agenda at the request of a council member will be considered 
separately. 

CORRESPONDENCE. 

This is an opportunity for the city council to review any received correspondence. No action will be 
taken.  

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION. 

This is an opportunity for citizens to address the city council.  Remarks will be addressed to the 
governing body as a whole.  Any issues presented will not be further discussed by the city council or 
the mayor at this meeting.  Comments must be limited to three minutes or less. 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT. 

The City Administrator will provide updates regarding recent and upcoming events and projects, and 
general operations of the City. No action will be taken.  
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REGULAR BUSINESS. 

1. Presentation of financial audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.  

2. Presentation of budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024, pursuant to 11 O.S. Section 9-
105.5. 

3. Consideration and possible action relating to the update of signatories for the City of Marietta 
financial accounts. 

4. Appointment of Dottie Gwin to the Southern Oklahoma Library System Board of Trustees. 

5. Appointment of Scott Chaney to serve as a member of the Board of Directors of the Southern 
Oklahoma Regional Disposal, Incorporated. 

6. Executive session to discuss the hiring of Alfredo Torres as a Police Officer, and the hours, 
duties, compensation, and benefits for said position, pursuant to Title 25 Oklahoma Statutes, 
Section 307 B (1). 

7. Executive session to discuss the employment of employee, Selina Barrientos,  and also the 
employment of employee, Jerry Fox,  and the hours, duties, compensation, and benefits of 
both employees, pursuant to Title 25 Oklahoma Statutes, Section 307 B (1). 

8. Consideration and possible action relating to the appointment of Alfredo Torres as a police 
officer, as well as the hours, duties, and pay for said position.  

9. Consideration and possible action relating to the employment of Selina Barrientos, and the 
hours, duties, compensation, and benefits of said employee. 

10. Consideration and possible action relating to the employment of Jerry Fox and the hours, 
duties, compensation, and benefits of said employee. 

NEW/UNFORESEEN BUSINESS. 

Discussion and possible action with respect to any matter not known, or which could not have been 
reasonably foreseen, prior to the time of posting this notice and agenda. 

MAYOR'S COMMENTS. 

The Mayor will provide updates regarding recent and upcoming events and projects, and general 
operations of the City. No action will be taken. 

ADJOURN. 

NOTICE OF POSTING: 

I, the undersigned Clerk of the City of Marietta, certify that the foregoing Notice and Agenda of the 
Regular Meeting of the Marietta City Council was posted in prominent public view at the Marietta 
Municipal Building, located at 700 S. Highway 77, and online at www.mariettaok.city, at 5:00 o'clock 
p.m. on Friday, May 5, 2023. 

   

 

 

Scott Chaney, Deputy City Clerk 

Dottie Gwin, City Clerk 
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NOTICE AND MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MARIETTA CITY COUNCIL 
 

Tuesday, April 11, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

Marietta Municipal Building, 700 S. Highway 77, Marietta, Oklahoma 
 

BUSINESS TO BE CONDUCTED (which may include discussion, consideration, action for approval or 
disapproval, voting to take any appropriate action, and the revision, amendment and passage of 
resolutions on the following agenda items): 

 

CALL TO ORDER. 

Meeting called to order by Vice Mayor McKinney at 6:04 p.m. 

ROLL CALL AND DECLARATION OF QUORUM. 

PRESENT 
Council Member Crystal Cohee 
Council Member Kermit McKinney 
Council Member Lawrence Anderson 
Council Member Richard Barker 
Council Member Tambre Sanders 
Council Member Destry Rushing 
 
ABSENT 
Mayor Kimberly Fraire 
Council Member Angela Vega 
Council Member Brandy Valenzuela 
 

INVOCATION. 

Invocation given by Lawrence Anderson. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

Pledge of Allegiance led by Kermit McKinney. 

CONSENT AGENDA. 

All matters listed under this section are considered by the City Council to be routine and will be enacted 
by one motion and vote.  Any council member may, however, remove any item from the consent agenda 
by request. 

Motion made by Council Member Sanders to approve the Consent Agenda, Seconded by Council 
Member Barker. 
Voting Yea: Council Member Cohee, Council Member McKinney, Council Member Anderson, Council 
Member Barker, Council Member Sanders, Council Member Rushing 
 

1. Approval of the agenda as part of the minutes. 

5



Minutes - Regular Meeting  
April 11, 2023 

Page 2 of 5 

 

2. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting on March 14, 2023, and the special meeting on 
March 30, 2023. 

 

3. Approval of financial reports. 

 

4. Approval of purchase orders and expenditures from the following accounts/funds, if any: general 
fund; sanitation fund; cemetery care fund; expense account; grant fund; police asset forfeiture 
account; payroll account. 

 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA. 

Any matter removed from the consent agenda at the request of a council member will be considered 
separately. 

None. 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION. 

This is an opportunity for citizens to address the city council.  Remarks will be addressed to the 
governing body as a whole.  Any issues presented will not be further discussed by the city council or 
the mayor at this meeting.  Comments must be limited to three minutes or less. 

Sherry Hutchins stated she is with the Garden Club and they are putting flowers out in self-watering 
tubs.  The tubs are $50.00.  She addressed the parking lines on Main Street and she would like it to 
be done prior to Frontier Days. 

Amie Orr from the Oklahoma Blood Institute addressed the Council regarding a decline in donors 
since 2018. She would like the leaders in the Community to help with blood drives and increasing 
donors. She would like to ask for the use of the City meeting every 56 days for a blood drive. 

Kendra Tucker handed out a flyer for the Great American Clean Up & Picnic Lunch. 

CORRESPONDENCE. 

This is an opportunity for the city council to review any received correspondence. No action will be taken. 

None. 

PRESENTATIONS. 

This is an opportunity for community organizations and city staff to present updates and proposals to 
the city council, and for the council to recognize the accomplishments of community members and city 
officials and staff. No action will be taken. 

 

1. Presentation honoring outgoing elected officials and staff. 
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Awards were presented to Richard Barker and Lawrence Anderson for their service on the 
City Council.  Kim Fraire, Kordale Lornes and Brandy Valenzula were not present to accept 
their awards. 

2. Presentation by Marietta Main Street Committee providing an update on committee activity. 

Georgeanne Westfall stated the committee is in full force and have incorporated others to 
help. The Boy Scouts have painted the hydrants on Main Street. Thanked the City for the 
employees cleaning the streets, weedeating, etc. She also stated she would like the parking 
lines on Main Street done prior to Frontier Days.  They are filing for a 501C3 so they can 
accept donations and thanked the City for the grant they put together. If no one participates in 
the grant she has ideas where the money can be spent. 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT. 

The City Administrator will provide updates regarding recent and upcoming events and projects, and 
general operations of the City. No action will be taken. 

City Administrator Scott stated the auditors completed the field work for the audit and should be 
issuing their final report for the May meeting; we worked money into the upcoming budget for the City 
Improvement Grant and have had two business owners ask for applications; we worked with a nearby 
business to share costs for the rework of a section of sidewalk at Shellenberger Park to comply with 
State regulations; we have completed the Arpa reporting for the year and spent all the funds that were 
provided in the first traunch of the waterline replacement project. We don't have the equipment to 
mark spaces on Main Street and we have a City that will lend equipment and maybe even their 
operator.  Nic McMillin declined the position that was offered at the last Special Meeting.  

REGULAR BUSINESS. 

 

1. Consideration and possible action relating to the designation of a special event sponsored by 
the Love County Chamber of Commerce in connection with the Great American Cleanup. 

Kendra Tucker stated this is part of the keep Oklahoma Beautiful Plan. She is trying to get as 
many people involved as possible.  

Motion made by Council Member Barker to adopt Resolution 2023-8 as presented; Seconded 
by Council Member Rushing. 
Voting Yea: Council Member Cohee, Council Member McKinney, Council Member Anderson, 
Council Member Barker, Council Member Sanders, Council Member Rushing 
 

2. Consideration and possible action relating to the election of trustees of the Oklahoma 
Municipal Assurance Group. 

Motion made by Council Member Barker to elect Pam Polk, Russ Meacham and Elizabeth 
Sloate as trustees of the Oklahoma Municipal Assurance Group, Seconded by Council 
Member Sanders. 
Voting Yea: Council Member Cohee, Council Member McKinney, Council Member Anderson, 
Council Member Barker, Council Member Sanders, Council Member Rushing 
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3. Consideration and possible action relating to the engagement of True North Mapping and 
Solutions for geographic information system mapping of Lakeview Cemetery and Prairieview 
Cemetery. 

City Administrator Scott stated they have been working on mapping Lakeview and Prairieview 
Cemeteries. The pricing is based per space.  The upfront price would be $25,000 and a 
monthly fee of $1,000.  There is money in the Cemetery fund to cover this. 

Motion made by Council Member Sanders to approve Contract with True North Mapping & 
Solutions as presented, Seconded by Council Member Cohee. 
Voting Yea: Council Member Cohee, Council Member McKinney, Council Member Anderson, 
Council Member Barker, Council Member Sanders, Council Member Rushing 
 

4. Consideration and possible action relating to amendments to the budget for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2023. 

Motion made by Council Member Sanders to adopt Resolution 2023-09 as presented 
changing date in paragraph 3 to 2023, Seconded by Council Member Barker. 
Voting Yea: Council Member Cohee, Council Member McKinney, Council Member Anderson, 
Council Member Barker, Council Member Sanders, Council Member Rushing 
 

5. Executive session(s) to discuss the following: The hiring of a city administrator, the employment 
of Brett Harris, the employment of Richard (“Mike”) Buxton; and the hours, duties, 
compensation, and benefits for the city administrator, and of said Brett Harris, and of said 
Richard (“Mike”) Buxton, all pursuant to Title 25 Oklahoma Statutes, Section 307 B (1). 
 
 

Motion made by Council Member Sanders to go into Executive Session at 6:55 p.m., 
Seconded by Council Member Anderson. 
Voting Yea: Council Member Cohee, Council Member McKinney, Council Member Anderson, 
Council Member Barker, Council Member Sanders, Council Member Rushing 
 

Returned to Open Session at 7:37 
 

6. Consideration and possible action relating to the employment of Brett Harris, and the hours, 
duties, compensation, and benefits of said employee. 

Motion made by Council Member Cohee to adopt Employment Agreement of Brett Harris as 
presented, Seconded by Council Member McKinney. 
Voting Yea: Council Member Cohee, Council Member McKinney, Council Member Anderson, 
Council Member Barker, Council Member Rushing 
 

7. Consideration and possible action relating to the employment of Richard ("Mike") Buxton, and 
the hours, duties, compensation, and benefits of said employee. 

No action. 

8. Consideration and possible action relating to the hiring of a city administrator for the City of 
Marietta, and the hours, duties, and compensation and benefits of said city administrator.  
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Motion made by Council Member Rushing to accept the Employment Agreement of Scott 
Chaney, Resolution 2023-10, as presented, Seconded by Council Member Anderson. 
Voting Yea: Council Member Cohee, Council Member McKinney, Council Member Anderson, 
Council Member Barker, Council Member Sanders, Council Member Rushing 
 

NEW/UNFORESEEN BUSINESS. 

Discussion and possible action with respect to any matter not known, or which could not have been 
reasonably foreseen, prior to the time of posting this notice and agenda. 

None. 

MAYOR'S COMMENTS. 

The Mayor will provide updates regarding recent and upcoming events and projects, and general 
operations of the City. No action will be taken. 

None. 

ADJOURN. 

Meeting adjourned at 7:41 p.m. 

NOTICE OF POSTING: 

I, the undersigned Clerk of the City of Marietta, certify that the foregoing Notice and Agenda of the 
Regular Meeting of the Marietta City Council was posted in prominent public view at the Marietta 
Municipal Building, located at 700 S. Highway 77, and online at www.mariettaok.city, at 8:00 o'clock 
a.m. on Saturday, April 8 2023. 

 

   

 

 

Scott Chaney, Deputy City Clerk 

Dottie Gwin, City Clerk 
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May 4, 2023

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Marietta, Oklahoma

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City of Marietta, Oklahoma (the 
City”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) as a basis for designing auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 

However, during our audit we became aware of deficiencies in internal control other than significant 
deficiencies and material weaknesses and matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal controls 
and operating efficiency.  Our comments regarding these matters are discussed below.  This letter does not 
affect our report dated May 4, 2023, on the financial statements of the City.

Sanitation Billing

The City’s sanitation services are billed and collected by MPWA and remitted to the City 
monthly. However, no reporting is provided by MPWA to support the remittance, and the City 
has apparently been unable to obtain or perform any verification of those remittances. We 
recommend that the City work to obtain underlying supporting documentation or draft 
language between the parties granting the City the right to inspect MPWA’s books and records 
for assurance that its remittances are complete and accurate. 

Debit Cards

The City has approximately 6 debit cards in circulation. Invoices are matched to the bank 
statement by City personnel, but no process is in place to independently verify or approve the 
charge for appropriateness. We recommend that the City establish a review of all debit card 
charges monthly by appropriate personnel, and that an audit trail be established indicating the 
charges were reviewed and approved. 

Bank Statements

In order to provide assurance that bank activity was authorized, we recommend that all bank 
statements be routed, unopened, directly to the City Administrator or other personnel 
independent of cash handling duties for review of unusual or unauthorized activity, and 
initialed as approved. 
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Check number sequences

We noted instances of check numbers not being issued in date order sequence. We recommend that 
the practice of dating checks other than the day the check was prepared be discontinued and that all 
checks be issued in date/check number sequence. 

We will review the status of internal controls during our next audit engagement.  We have already discussed 
these comments with various personnel, and we will be pleased to discuss them in further detail at your 
convenience. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management and members of the City 
Council, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than those specified parties. 

Sincerely,
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May 4, 2023

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Marietta, Oklahoma

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
City of Marietta, Oklahoma (the “City”) for the year ended June 30, 2022. Professional standards require 
that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards 
(and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information 
in our letter to you dated April 25, 2022. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you 
the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices :
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.  No new accounting 
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year. The City 
prepares its financial statements on the modified cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting 
other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We noted no 
transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based 
on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future 
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial 
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from 
those expected. Due to the City’s use of the modified cash basis of accounting, no significant estimates are 
used in preparing the City’s financial statements. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit :
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements :
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
We did not note any misstatements during our audit procedures. 
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Disagreements with Management :
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or 
the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our 
audit.

Management Representations :
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated may 4, 2023.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants :
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 
of an accounting principle to the City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. The City uses Rahal 
Henderson Willis PLLC to assist the City with pre-audit matters and drafting the City’s financial statements. 
To our knowledge, no consultations took place that involved unusual applications of accounting principles. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues :
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to 
our retention.

Other Matters

We were engaged to report on supplemental combining schedules – modified cash basis and the schedule 
of grant activity, which accompany the financial statements. With respect to this supplementary information, 
we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the 
information to determine that the information complies with the modified cash basis of accounting, the 
method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and 
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary 
information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves. 

We were not engaged to report on the other information, which includes the budgetary comparison 
information, which accompany the financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management of the 
City and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Sincerely,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Marietta, Oklahoma

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying modified cash basis financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Marietta, Oklahoma (the “City”), as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective modified cash basis financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective 
changes in modified cash basis financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting described in Note 1.

We did not audit the financial statements of the Marietta Public Works Authority (the “Authority”), a 
discretely presented component unit of the City. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose 
report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the 
Authority, are based solely on the report of the other auditors. 

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are required to be independent of the City, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Emphasis of Matter—Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 of the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The 
financial statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting 
other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinions are not 
modified with respect to this matter.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting described in Note 1, and for determining that the 
modified cash basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation of the financial statements in 
the circumstances. Management is also responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

Supplemental Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplemental combining schedules – 
modified cash basis, and schedule of grant activity – modified cash basis, as listed in the table of contents, 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
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directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to 
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining schedules 
and schedule of grant activity are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information 
comprises the budgetary comparison information  but does not include the basic financial statements and 
our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other 
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the 
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information 
exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 4, 2023, 
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

May 4, 2023
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City of Marietta, Oklahoma 
Statement of Net Position – Modified Cash Basis 

June 30, 2022 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
3 

 

 
 Component Unit 

Governmental Business-Type Marietta Public
Activities Activities Total Works Authority

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent 1,748,960$           36,599$                 1,785,559$         1,141,370$             
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalent 51,016                 -                           51,016               32,558                   
Interfund Balances (9,075)                 9,075                     -                        -                           

Inventory -                         -                           -                        136,668                 

Total  Current Assets 1,790,901             45,674                   1,836,575           1,310,596               

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets, Non-Depreciable 496,611               -                           496,611              21,395                   
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 1,598,279             512,205                 2,110,484           1,090,584               

Total Noncurrent Assets 2,094,890             512,205                 2,607,095           1,111,979               

Total Assets 3,885,791             557,879                 4,443,670           2,422,575               

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accrued Expenses -                         -                           -                        6,532                     
Refundable Meter Deposits - Current -                         -                           -                        4,228                     
Notes Payable, Current Portion 110,834               75,170                   186,004              29,182                   

Total Current Liabilities 110,834               75,170                   186,004              39,942                   

Noncurrent Liabilities
Refundable Meter Deposits -                         -                           -                        28,330                   
Notes Payable 612,829               151,134                 763,963              160,595                 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 612,829               151,134                 763,963              188,925                 

Total Liabilities 723,663               226,304                 949,967              228,867                 

Net Position
Invested in Capital Assets 1,371,227             285,901                 1,657,128           951,384                 
Restricted for Other Purposes 79,297                 -                           79,297               -                           
Unrestricted 1,711,604             45,674                   1,757,278           1,242,324               

Total Net Position 3,162,128$           331,575$               3,493,703$         2,193,708$             

Primary Government
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City of Marietta, Oklahoma 
Statement of Activities – Modified Cash Basis 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
   Changes in Net Position

Operating Capital Primary Government
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type Component

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total  Unit 

Functions/Programs
Primary Government

Governmental Activities
General Government 576,525$                 26,682$                   -$                               -$                               (549,843)$               -$                              (549,843)$             -$                    
Highways and Streets 380,474                   -                              -                                 241,723                     (138,751)                 -                                (138,751)               -                      
Public Safety 912,643                   172,716                   55,561                       -                                 (684,366)                 -                                (684,366)               -                      
Cemetery and Parks 140,105                   28,963                     -                                 -                                 (111,142)                 -                                (111,142)               -                      
Culture and Recreation 14,667                     -                              -                                 -                                 (14,667)                   -                                (14,667)                 -                      
Interest Expense 8,962                       -                              -                                 -                                 (8,962)                     -                                (8,962)                   -                      

Total Governmental Activities 2,033,376                228,361                   55,561                       241,723                     (1,507,731)              -                                (1,507,731)            -                      

Business-Type Activities
Sanitation 332,493                   344,981                   -                                 -                                 -                              12,488                      12,488                  -                      
Transfer Site 116,035                   107,543                   -                                 -                                 -                              (8,492)                       (8,492)                   -                      

Total Business Type Activities 448,528                   452,524                   -                                 -                                 -                              3,996                        3,996                    -                      

Total Primary Government 2,481,904$              680,885$                 55,561$                     241,723$                   (1,507,731)              3,996                        (1,503,735)            -                      

Component Unit
Marietta Public Works Authority 894,022$                 1,174,919$              -$                               -$                               -                              -                                -                            280,897          

General Revenues
Taxes:
     Sales Tax 1,293,297 -                                1,293,297             -                      
     Use Tax 195,988 -                                195,988                -                      
     Franchise Tax 100,672 -                                100,672                -                      
     Alcohol Beverage Tax 99,868 -                                99,868                  -                      
     Other Taxes 41,695                     -                                41,695                  -                      
Interest 503                          9                               512                       598                 
Miscellaneous 224,668                   -                                224,668                -                      
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets 8,802                       9,075                        17,877                  -                      
Transfers 9,154                       (9,154)                       -                            -                      

Total General Revenues and Transfers 1,974,647                (70)                            1,974,577             598                 

Change in Net Position 466,916                   3,926                        470,842                281,495          

Net Position - Beginning 2,695,212                327,649                    3,022,861             1,912,213       

Net Position - Ending 3,162,128$              331,575$                  3,493,703$           2,193,708$     

Program Revenues
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City of Marietta, Oklahoma 
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds – Modified Cash Basis 

June 30, 2022 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Other
General Governmental Total

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,703,650$      45,310$           1,748,960$    
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents -                       51,016             51,016           
Due from Other Funds 17,029             -                       17,029           

Total Assets 1,720,679$      96,326$           1,817,005$    

Liabilities

Due to Other Funds 9,075$             17,029$           26,104$         

Total Liabilities 9,075               17,029             26,104           

Fund Balances

Restricted -                       79,297             79,297           
Assigned 104,177           -                   104,177         
Unassigned 1,607,427        -                   1,607,427      

Total Fund Balances 1,711,604        79,297             1,790,901      

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balances 1,720,679$      96,326$           

2,094,890      

(723,663)        

3,162,128$    

 Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, 
therefore, are not reported in the fund.

Long term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, 
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Net position of governmental activities.
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City of Marietta, Oklahoma 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds – Modified Cash Basis 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Other
General Governmental Total

REVENUE
Taxes 1,731,520$       -$                       1,731,520$       
License and Permits 26,682             -                         26,682             
Miscellaneous 235,763           2,287                  238,050           
Fines and Forfeitures 172,716           -                         172,716           
Grant Revenue 297,284           -                         297,284           
Charges for Services 23,657             5,306                  28,963             
Interest 393                 110                     503                 

Total Revenue 2,488,015         7,703                  2,495,718         

EXPENDITURES
Current

General Government 565,303           -                         565,303           
Highways and Streets 304,477           -                         304,477           
Public Safety 776,038           1,541                  777,579           
Cemetery and Parks 107,708           1,600                  109,308           
Culture and Recreation 7,296               -                         7,296               

Capital Outlay
General Government 425,997           -                         425,997           
Cemetery and Parks 208,823           4,018                  212,841           
Public Safety 40,427             -                         40,427             
Highways and Streets 24,616             -                         24,616             

Debt Service
Principal 82,912             82,912             
Interest 5,616               -                         5,616               

Total Expenditures 2,549,213         7,159                  2,556,372         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (61,198)            544                     (60,654)            

Other Financing Sources
Debt Proceeds 500,000           -                         500,000           
Transfers In 9,154               50,907                 60,061             
Transfers Out (50,907)            -                         (50,907)            

Total Other Financing Sources 458,247           50,907                 509,154           

Net Change in Fund Balances 397,049           51,451                 448,500           

Fund Balances - Beginning 1,314,555         27,846                 1,342,401         

Fund Balances - Ending 1,711,604$       79,297$               1,790,901$       
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City of Marietta, Oklahoma 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

of Governmental Funds – Modified Cash Basis to the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Amounts reported for governmental activities
 in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 448,500$    

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement 
of activities the costs of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense.
      Capital Asset Purchases 700,535      
      Depreciation Expense (260,451)     

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., leases) provides current financial resources to 
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes 
the current financial resources of governmental funds.
      Debt Repayment 82,912        
      Debt Proceeds (500,747)     

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of assets is reported, whereas, in 
the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increases financial position. The 
change in net position differs from the change in fund balance by the net book value of 
the assts sold. (3,833)         

Change in net position of governmental activities. 466,916$    
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City of Marietta, Oklahoma 
Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Funds – Modified Cash Basis  
June 30, 2022 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Sanitation
Transfer Site

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 36,599$                      
Due From Other Funds 9,075                          

Total Current Assets 45,674                        

Noncurrent Assets
Machinery and Equipment 774,116                      
Infrastructure 81,600                        
Accumulated Depreciation (343,511)                     

Total Noncurrent Assets 512,205                      

Total Assets 557,879                      

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Notes Payable, Current 75,170                        

Total Current Liabilities 75,170                        

Noncurrent Liabilities

Notes Payable 151,134                      

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 151,134                      

Total Liabilities 226,304                      

NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets 285,901                      
Unrestricted 45,674                        

Total Net Position 331,575$                    
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City of Marietta, Oklahoma 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Proprietary Funds – Modified Cash Basis  
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Sanitation
Transfer Site

Operating Revenues:
Sanitation Revenue 344,981$        
Transfer Site Revenue 107,543          

Total Operating Revenue 452,524          

Operating Expenses:
Sanitation

Personnel Services 168,850          
Materials and Supplies 61,264            
Tipping Fees - SORD 61,731
Depreciation Expense 38,523            

Transfer Site
Personnel Services 54,490            
Materials and Supplies 20,807            
Tipping Fees - SORD 29,805            
Depreciation Expense 10,933            

Total Operating Expenses 446,403          

Operating Income (Loss) 6,121              

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Gain on Disposal of Assets 9,075              
Interest Revenue 9
Interest Expense (2,125)             

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 6,959              

Income (Loss) before Transfers 13,080            

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers Out (9,154)             

Total Other Financing Sources (9,154)             

Net Change in Net Position 3,926              

Total Net Position - Beginning 327,649          

Total Net Position - Ending 331,575$         
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City of Marietta, Oklahoma 
Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds – Modified Cash Basis  

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
10 

 

 
 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Revenues Received 452,524$            
Vendors and Others Paid (396,947)             

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 55,577                

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers, Net (9,154)                

Net Cash Used by Noncapital Financing Activities (9,154)                

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of Debt (40,063)              
Debt Proceeds 178,008              
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (261,009)             

Net Cash Used by Capital Financing Activities (123,064)             

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Expense (2,125)                
Interest Income 9                       

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (2,116)                

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (78,757)              

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1, 2021 115,356              

Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30, 2022 36,599$              

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities

Operating Income 6,121$                
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities

Depreciation and Amortization 49,456                

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 55,577$              
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City of Marietta, Oklahoma 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

11 
 

 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

A. The Reporting Entity 
The City of Marietta is an aldermanic government created under Title 11 of the Oklahoma 
Statutes.  The governing body of the City is the City Council comprised of eight elected 
members.  The City Clerk, Treasurer and Mayor are also elected.   
 
For financial reporting purposes the financial statements includes all funds over which the 
City Council exercises oversight responsibility.  The criteria used to determine whether or 
not to include other entities in the financial statements were (1) the selection of governing 
authority, (2) designation of management, (3) ability to significantly influence operations, 
and (4) accountability for fiscal matters.  Based on this criteria, the Marietta Public Works 
Authority is included. 
 
The Marietta Public Works Authority (the Authority) is a Title 60.O.S. public trust created 
June 15, 1959.  The City Council appoints members to the Marietta Public Works Authority 
governing body.  The Marietta Public Works Authority is a discretely presented component 
unit.  Separate audited financial statements are produced for the Marietta Public Works 
Authority and may be obtained at their office located at 303 W. Main, Marietta, Oklahoma. 
 
B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities and changes in net position) report information on all of the 
nonfiduciary activities of the primary government.  For the most part, the effect of interfund 
activity has been removed from these statements.  Governmental activities, which normally 
are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.  
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment is offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported 
instead as general revenues. 
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City of Marietta, Oklahoma 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
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I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 
 

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements - continued 
Fund Financial Statements 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.  
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as 
separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
 
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
The governmental funds are reported on a modified cash basis of accounting and current 
financial resources measurement focus.  Only current financial assets and liabilities resulting 
from cash transactions are included on the fund balance sheets.  The operating statements 
present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period.  
These fund financial statements use fund balance as their measure of available spendable 
financial resources at the end of the period.  The reconciliation of the governmental funds 
financial statements to the governmental activities presentation in the government-wide 
financial statements is the result of the use of the economic resources measurement focus at 
the government-wide level.   
 
The statement of net position and activities and the fund financial statements are reported on 
a modified basis of accounting.  The modified cash basis of accounting is based on the 
recording of cash and cash equivalents and changes therein, and only recognizes revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities resulting from cash transactions adjusted for modifications 
that have substantial support in generally accepted accounting principles. These 
modifications include adjustments for the following balances arising from cash transactions: 

 Capital assets and the depreciation of those assets, where applicable 

 Inventory 

 Long-term debt 

 Cash-based interfund receivables and payables 

 Other cash-based receivable and payables 
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City of Marietta, Oklahoma 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
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I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 
 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation – 
continued 

As a result of the use of this modified cash basis of accounting, certain assets and their 
related revenues (such as accounts receivable and revenue for billed or provided services not 
yet collected, and accrued revenue and receivables) and certain liabilities and their related 
expenses (such as accounts payable and expenses for goods or services received but not yet 
paid, and accrued expenses and liabilities) are not recorded in these financial statements. 
 
The government reports the following major government funds:  
 

General Fund - is the government’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. 
 

The government reports the Sanitation / Transfer Site as a major proprietary fund.  It 
accounts for activities related to operating the residential and commercial sanitation systems, 
and the public transfer site. 
 
The government reports the following nonmajor governmental funds: 
 Special Revenue Funds 
 Cemetery Care 
 Grant 
 Volunteer Fire  
 
As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and 
other charges between the government’s sanitation and transfer site function and various 
other functions of the government.  Elimination of these charges would distort the direct 
costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 
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City of Marietta, Oklahoma 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
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I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 
 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation – 
continued 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for 
goods, services, or privileges provided, and 2) operating grants and contributions, including 
special assessments.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather 
than as program revenues.  Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. Proprietary funds 
distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating 
revenues of the City’s enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales and services.  
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s 
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity 

 Deposits and Investments 
The government’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand 
deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the 
date of acquisition. 
 
The City does not have a written investment policy that limits its investment choices other 
than the limitations stated in the Oklahoma Statutes.  Oklahoma Statutes allow the City to 
invest in bonds of cities, school districts, or counties within the State of Oklahoma; public 
trust bonds whose beneficiary is a county, municipality or school district, except industrial 
development bonds; direct obligations of the United States; and certificates of deposit.  
Public trusts created under O.S. Title 60, are not subject to the above investment limitations 
and are primarily governed by any restrictions in their trust or note indenture. 
 
Investments for the government, as well as for its component units, are reported at cost, 
which approximates fair value. 
 
Inventory – Component Unit 
All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in / first-out (FIFO) method.  Inventories are 
recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 
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City of Marietta, Oklahoma 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
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I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 

 
D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity – continued 
Capital Assets 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., 
roads, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are 
defined by the government as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $1,500 
(amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Such assets are 
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 
 
Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, is 
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 
 Assets Years 
 Buildings 50 
 Infrastructure 30 
 Vehicles 5 
 Computer Equipment 5 
 Machinery and Equipment 10 
 
Capital Assets - Component Unit 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., water 
and sewer systems), are defined by the Authority as assets with an initial individual cost of 
more than $1,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or 
constructed. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and 
improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 
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I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 

 
D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity – continued 
Component Unit – Capital Assets - continued 
Property, plant, and equipment of the Authority are depreciated using the straight-line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 Assets  Years 
 Water System  40 
 Sewer System  40 
 Equipment  10 
 Computers & Electronics  5 
 Automobiles 5 
 
Long-Term Obligations 
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type 
statement of net position. 
 
Long-Term Obligations – Component Unit 
Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of 
net position. 
 
Fund Equity 
Government-wide Statements 

 Equity is classified as Net Position and displayed in three components: 
1. Invested in capital assets – consists of capital assets net of accumulated 

depreciation reduced by the outstanding balances of notes or other borrowings 
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets. 
 

2. Restricted Net Position – consists of net position with constraints on the use either 
by (1) external groups or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation.  The City typically uses restricted assets first, as appropriate 
opportunities arise but reserves the right to selectively defer the use until a future 
project. 

 
3. Unrestricted Net Position – All other net position that do not meet the definition 

of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets”.  The City Council has the authority 
to revise or alter this designation. 
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I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 

 
D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity – continued 
Fund Equity – continued 

Fund Statements 
The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on 
classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which 
the City is bound to honor constraints on specific purposes for which amounts in the 
respective governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in the 
governmental fund financial statements are as follows: 

 Nonspendable – consists of amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) 
not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact.  
 

 Restricted – consists of amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of 
the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt 
covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) 
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  

 
 Committed – consists of amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because 

of constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council. These amounts cannot be 
used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified 
use by taking the same type of action (resolution) that was employed when the funds 
were initially committed.  This classification also includes contractual obligations to 
the extent that existing resources have been specifically committed for use in 
satisfying those contractual requirements. 

 

 Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s 
intent to be used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This 
intent can be expressed by the Council or through the Council delegating this 
responsibility to the Mayor through the budgetary process. This classification also 
includes the remaining positive fund balance for all governmental funds except for 
the General Fund. The City has assigned interest earnings to the funds where earned 
for the purposes defined by the fund. 
 

 Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General 
Fund. The Unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund balance of 
any other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of Assigned fund 
balance amounts. 
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I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued 

 
D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity – continued 
Fund Equity – continued 
The City would typically use Restricted fund balances first, followed by Committed 
resources, and then Assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the 
right to selectively spend Unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified 
funds. 
 
Estimates 
Certain estimates are made in the preparation of the financial statements, such as estimated 
lives for capital assets depreciation.  Estimates are based on management’s best judgments 
and may vary from actual results. 
 

II. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS  
 

A. Deposits and Investments 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not 
be returned to it.  The City does not have a written deposit policy for custodial credit risk, but 
Oklahoma Statutes required collateral for all uninsured deposits of municipal funds in 
financial institutions.  As of June 30, 2022, the City’s bank balances of $1,457,866 were fully 
insured or collateralized. 
 

At June 30, 2022, the primary government reporting entity had the following deposits:

 Carrying Value 

Primary Government 

Carrying Value 

Component Unit 

Deposits:
Demand Deposits 1,655,112$                   1,091,258$       
Time Deposits 181,463                        82,670              

1,836,575$                   1,173,928$       

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,785,559$                   1,141,370$       
Restricted Cash 51,016                          32,558              

1,836,575$                   1,173,928$       

Type of Deposits

 
Component Unit: At June 30, 2022, MPWA had a bank balance of $1,173,928. This amount 
was insured or fully collateralized. 
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II. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - continued 

 
A. Deposits and Investments – continued 
Investment Interest Rate Risk 
The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a 
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 
 
Investment Credit Risk 
The City has no investment policy that limits its investment choices other than the limitations 
of state law that generally authorize investments in: (1) full faith and credit, direct obligations 
of the U.S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities, and the State of Oklahoma and 
certain mortgage insured federal debt; (2) certificates of deposit or savings accounts that are 
either insured or secured with acceptable collateral; (3) negotiable certificates of deposit, 
prime bankers acceptances, prime commercial paper and repurchase agreements with certain 
limitations; (4) county, municipal or school district tax supported debt obligations, bond or 
revenue anticipation notes, money judgments, or bond or revenue anticipation notes of public 
trusts whose beneficiary is a county, municipality or school district; and government money 
market funds regulated by the SEC.  These investment limitations do not apply to the City’s 
component unit.  The City’s investments at June 30, 2022 consisted of certificates of deposit. 
The Marietta Public Works Authority, is a Public Trust under Oklahoma Statutes Title 60 
and is not subject to investment limitations.  The Authority is primarily governed by any 
restrictions in its trust or note indenture. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
The City places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer. 
 
Restricted Cash 
Restricted cash in the Governmental Funds at June 30, 2022 consists of the Cemetery 
Donation Fund in the amount of $51,016. 
 
Investments at June 30, 2022 for the City and Authority consisted of certificates of deposit. 
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II. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - continued 
 

B. Capital Assets 
Capital asset activity of the Primary Government for the year ended June 30, 2022 was a 
follows: 
 

 Beginning 

Balance  Additions  Disposals 

 Ending 

Balance 

Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, not being depreciated:

Land 58,038$             -$                       -$                       58,038$             
Construction in Progress -                         438,573             -                         438,573             

Total Capital Assets, not being depreciated 58,038               438,573             -                         496,611             

Capital Assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 548,585             3,306                 -                         551,891             
Machinery and Equipment 1,585,557          23,817               35,000               1,574,374          
Vehicles 404,232             21,998               -                         426,230             
Furniture and Fixtures 10,178               -                         -                         10,178               
Land Improvements 226,276             212,841             -                         439,117             
Infrastructure 990,176             -                         -                         990,176             

Total Capital Assets, being depreciated 3,765,004          261,962             35,000               3,991,966          

Less Accumulated Depreciation 2,164,403          260,451             31,167               2,393,687          

Total Capital Assets, being depreciated, net 1,600,601          1,511                 3,833                 1,598,279          

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net 1,658,639$        440,084$           3,833$               2,094,890$        

Business Type Activities:
Capital Assets, being depreciated:

Machinery and Equipment 648,546$           261,008$           135,438$           774,116$           
Infrastructure 81,600               -                         -                         81,600               

Total Capital Assets, being depreciated 730,146             261,008             135,438             855,716             

Less Accumulated Depreciation 429,494             49,455               135,438             343,511             

Total Capital Assets, being depreciated, net 300,652             211,553             -                         512,205             

Business Type Activities Capital Assets, net 300,652$           211,553$           -$                       512,205$           

 
 

85



City of Marietta, Oklahoma 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2022 

21 
 

 
II. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - continued 
 

B. Capital Assets – continued 
Capital asset activity of the Component Unit for the year ended June 30, 2022 was a follows: 
 

 Beginning 

Balance  Additions  Disposals 

 Ending 

Balance 

Component Unit:
Capital Assets, not being depreciated:

Land 12,854$             8,541$               -$                       21,395$             

Total Capital Assets, not being depreciated 12,854               8,541                 -                         21,395               

Capital Assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 329,328             -                         -                         329,328             
Machinery and Equipment 320,185             -                         -                         320,185             
Vehicles 102,217             -                         -                         102,217             
Furniture and Fixtures 50,567               -                         -                         50,567               
Infrastructure 4,530,499          39,361               -                         4,569,860          

Total Capital Assets, being depreciated 5,332,796          39,361               -                         5,372,157          

Less Accumulated Depreciation 4,142,214          139,359             -                         4,281,573          

Total Capital Assets, being depreciated, net 1,190,582          (99,998)              -                         1,090,584          

Component Unit Capital Assets, net 1,203,436$        (91,457)$            -$                       1,111,979$        

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as 
follows: 

Governmental Activities:
General Government 12,459$             
Highways and Streets 75,997               
Public Safety 133,828             
Cemetery and Parks 30,797               
Culture and Recreation 7,370                 

Total Depreciation Expense - 
Governmental Activities 260,451$           

Business Type Activities:
Sanitation 38,523$             
Transfer Site 10,932               

Total Depreciation Expense - Business 
Type Activities 49,455$             
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II. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - continued 

 
C. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers 
The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2022 is as follows: 
 
Interfund Transfers 

 Enterprise  General  Total 

Transfers In:

General Fund 9,154$           -$              9,154$           

Cemetery Care -                    50,907           50,907           

9,154$           50,907$         60,061$         

Transfers Out:

 
Reason / Purpose – Budgeted operating transfers. 
 
Due To – Due From 

Due From Due To

Grant Fund General Fund 17,029$  
General Fund Sanitation Fund 9,075      

 
 

D. Long Term Debt  
 

Governmental Activities, Direct Placement

The City has entered into a $202,516 debt agreement with a bank 
through December 2024, with interest at 3% for the purchase of a 
2020 Fire Truck. Principal and interest are payable monthly. 146,820$      

The City has entered into a $103,312 debt agreement with a bank 
through June 2025, with interest at 3% for the purchase of a 2020 
Dump Truck. Principal and interest are payable monthly. 78,643          

The City has entered into a $500,747 debt agreement with a bank 
through May 2037, with interest at 2.5% for the purchase of the 
new municipal building. Principal and interest are payable monthly. 498,200        

723,663$      
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II. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – continued 
 

D. Long Term Debt – continued 
 

Business-Type Activities, Direct Placement

The City has entered into a $88,359 debt agreement with a bank 
through August 2023, with interest at 3% for the purchase of a 2018 
Trash Truck. Principal and interest are payable monthly. 48,296$        

The City has entered into a $178,008 debt agreement with a bank 
through June 2027, with interest at 2.5% for the purchase of a 2023 
Trash Truck. Principal and interest are payable monthly. 178,008        

226,304$      

Note Payable - Component Unit
The Authority has entered into a $346,800 debt agreement through 
2032, with interest at 3.315% for the purchase of auto read meters. 
Principal and interest are payable annually. 189,777$      

 
 
Annual principal and interest payments to maturity as of June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2023 57,396$             3,671$               25,423$     2,040$        28,015$     12,135$     
2024 59,161               1,905                 26,204       1,259          28,724       11,427       
2025 30,263               270                    27,016       447             29,450       10,701       
2026 -                         -                         -                -                  30,195       9,956         
2027 -                         -                         -                -                  30,958       9,192         

2028-2032 -                         -                         -                -                  166,938     33,815       
2033-2037 -                         -                         -                -                  183,920     11,616       

Total 146,820$           5,846$               78,643$     3,746$        498,200$   98,842$     

Governmental Activities

 
 

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2023 41,291$             897$                  33,879$     4,064$        29,182$     6,307$       
2024 7,005                 27                      34,736       3,207          30,149       5,340         
2025 -                         -                         35,614       2,329          31,149       4,340         
2026 -                         -                         36,515       1,428          32,181       3,308         
2027 -                         -                         37,264       504             33,248       2,241         

2028 -                         -                         -                -                  33,868       1,137         

Total 48,296$             924$                  178,008$   11,532$      189,777$   22,673$     

Business-Tpye Activities Component Unit
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II. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – continued 

 
D. Long Term Debt – continued 

 
 Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 
 Long term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2022, was as follows: 
 

 Beginning 

Balance  Additions  Reductions 

 Ending 

Balance 

 Due Within 

One Year 

Governmental Activities:
Notes Payable 305,828$           500,747$           82,912$             723,663$           110,834$           

Total Long Term Liabilities 305,828$           500,747$           82,912$             723,663$           110,834$           

Business Type Activities:
Notes Payable 88,359$             178,008$           40,063$             226,304$           75,170$             

Total Long Term Liabilities 88,359$             178,008$           40,063$             226,304$           75,170$             

Component Unit:
Notes Payable 218,023$           -$                       28,246$             189,777$           29,182$             

Total Long Term Liabilities 218,023$           -$                       28,246$             189,777$           29,182$             

 
 

E. Fund Equity 
Net Position Restricted by Enabling Legislation 
The government-wide statement of net position reports $79,297 of restricted Net Position, of 
which $63,120 is restricted by enabling legislation. 
 

63,120$           
Enabling Legislation:
Cemetery Care Fund

 
Governmental Fund Balance Classifications 

 As of June 30, 2022, fund balances of the Governmental Funds were classified as follows: 
Other

General Governmental Total

Restricted
-$                             63,120$          63,120$          
-                               16,177            16,177            

Assigned
Public Safety 104,177                   -                     104,177          
Unassigned 1,607,427                -                     1,607,427       

1,711,604$              79,297$          1,790,901$     

Cemetery Capital Purchases
Public Safety
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II. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – continued 

 
F.  Pension Plans 
Primary Government - Municipal Retirement Plan 
Plan Description:  The City and its employees participate in a cost sharing, multiple 
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement 
Fund.  Participation in the plan is mandatory for all full time employees, and each employee 
is required to contribute a percentage of his or her salary.  Employees are vested at 7 years. 
OMRF provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and their 
beneficiaries. OMRF is authorized to establish and amend all plan provisions.   
 
The OMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
the required supplementary information that can be obtained by requesting a copy at OMRF, 
P.O. Box 25848, Oklahoma City, OK 73125. 

 
Funding Policy: The contribution requirements of the City and its employees are established 
and may be amended by the OMRF board.  Employees are required to contribute 5.25 
percent of their annual covered salary.  The City is required to contribute at an actuarially 
determined rate of 7.15 percent.  The required contribution was determined as part of the 
March, 2022 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method.  The 
actuarial assumptions included (I) 7.5 percent investment rate of return, (II) projected salary 
increases due to inflation of 3 percent, compounded annually, and (III) projected salary 
increases due to age/seniority, compounded annually.  Funding requirements may increase in 
the future as benefits accrue. 
 
Annual Pension Cost: For City of Marietta’s annual pension cost for 2022, 2021 and 2020 
were $59,008, $50,651, and $36,425, respectively.  
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II. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – continued 

 
F. Pension Plans – continued 
Component Unit – Municipal Retirement Plan 
Plan Description:  The Authority participates in a cost sharing, multiple employer defined 
benefit pension plan administered by the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund.  
Participation in the plan is mandatory for all full time employees, and each employee is 
required to contribute a percentage of his or her salary.  Employees are vested at 10 years. 
OMRF provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and their 
beneficiaries.  
 
Funding Policy: The contribution requirements of the Marietta Public Works Authority and 
its employees are established and may be amended by the OMRF board.  Employees are 
required to contribute 5.00 percent of their annual covered salary after tax.  The Authority is 
required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate of 23.41% percent. The required 
contribution was determined as part of the July 1, 2021 actuarial valuation using the entry 
age normal actuarial cost method.  The actuarial assumptions included (I) 7.25 percent 
investment rate of return, (II) projected salary increases due to inflation of 3 percent, 
compounded annually, and (III) projected salary increases due to age/seniority, compounded 
annually. Funding requirements may increase in the future as benefits accrue. 
 
Annual Pension Cost: Marietta Public Works Authority’s annual pension cost for 2022, 2021, 
and 2020 were $57,439, $55,859, and $49,353, respectively.   

 
Firefighters’ Retirement Plan 
Pursuant to the requirements of Title 11, section 22-102, the City of Marietta participates in 
the statewide cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan administered by the 
Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement System (OFPRS) on behalf of volunteer 
firefighters. The City has no responsibility or authority for the operation and administration 
of the pension program not has it any related liability, except for the current contribution 
requirements. 
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II. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – continued 

 
F. Pension Plans – continued 
Firefighters’ Retirement Plan - continued 
The contribution rates for the City and its volunteers are established by Statute. The City is 
required to contribute $60 per volunteer for the year ended June 30, 2021. This contribution 
covers a portion of the cost of benefits that will be paid to vested firemen.  Additional 
funding comes from a percentage of all taxes on premiums collected by insurance companies 
and appropriated by the State of Oklahoma. 
 
The OFPRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to OFPRS, 454 
North Lincoln Blvd., Suite 265, Oklahoma City, OK 73105-3414.  
 
The City contributed $1,020 in 2021-22; $840 in 2020-21; and $2,040 in 2019-20. 
 
G. Sales Tax 
The City levies a 3% sales tax on gross receipts derived from all sales taxable under the state 
sales tax code, 68 O.S. § 1350.  The levy of sales tax of 3%, is an increase of 1% from the 
previous amount of 2%, and if not renewed, will expire 5 years from the effective date of 
passage. Upon such expiration, the excise tax will revert to the previous amounts of 2%.  The 
current levy will expire in October 2025. 
 
H. Risk Management 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss (torts, theft of, damage to, or destruction of 
assets, business interruptions, errors and omissions, job-related illnesses or injuries to 
employees, and acts of God) and has established a risk management strategy that attempts to 
minimize losses and the carrying cost of insurance.  There have been no significant 
reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and settlements have not exceeded 
coverage in the past three years. 
 
General Liability, Physical Property and Automobile Liability/ Physical Damage - general 
liability, physical property and automobile liability/physical damage are insured through the 
Oklahoma Municipal Assurance Group risk entity pool.  Deductibles range from $0 to 
$5,000.  Risk of loss retained is limited to the excess of insurance liability coverage limits set 
my OMAG. 
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II. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – continued 

 
H. Risk Management - continued 
Worker’s Compensation - Workers’ compensation is insured through CompSource 
Oklahoma.  Risk of loss retained is limited to the excess of insurance liability coverage limits 
set by CompSource Oklahoma. 
 
I. Commitments and Contingencies 
Grant Programs 
In the normal course of operations; the City participates in various federal and state grant 
programs from year to year.  Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are often 
subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agency.  Any disallowed claims, including 
amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable fund.  The amount, if 
any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor agency cannot be determined at 
this time, although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 City employees are allowed to accrue a maximum of 160 hours of vacation time. Any 
accrued vacation remaining at the time the employee leaves employment of the City is 
payable to the employee. As a result of the City’s use of the modified cash basis of 
accounting, accrued liabilities related to compensated absences earned but unpaid at June 30, 
2022, are not reflected. The City’s commitment as of June 30, 2022 related to compensated 
absences totals $38,030. 
 
J. Related Party Transactions 
The City’s garbage billing and collection services are performed by Marietta Public Works 
Authority, a component unit of the City. The Authority includes the amount for trash service 
on monthly utility bills. The Authority collects payments and remits the amounts received, 
less a 3% administrative fee to the City each month. 
 
Total Amounts Collected and paid to City of Marietta are as follows: 
 

Garbage Collections 350,289$      
Less: Administrative Fee (12,653)         

337,636$       
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The mayor submits an annual budget to the City Council in accordance with the City Charter 
and the Oklahoma Municipal Budget Act.  In June the City Council adopts annual fiscal year 
appropriated budgets for all city funds. 
 
The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, department and categories (personnel services, 
materials and supplies, other services and charges, capital outlay, debt services and transfers).  
Transfers of appropriations between departments within a fund require the approval of the 
City Manager.  Transfers of appropriations between funds and supplements to the budget 
require City Council approval.  The legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which 
expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the department level. 
 
The budgetary comparison schedules are reported on the same modified cash basis as 
governmental funds within the basic financial statements.  For budgetary comparison 
purposes, the City considers all encumbrances to lapse at year end, therefore, encumbrances 
are not considered expenditures for budgetary comparison purposes.  However, the City will 
re-appropriate these lapsed encumbrances in the subsequent year budget. 
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 Original  Final Budget  Actual 

 Variance 

with Final 

Budget 

REVENUE
Taxes 1,547,000$    1,647,000$    1,731,520$    84,520$        
License & Permits 34,000          34,000          26,682          (7,318)          
Miscellaneous 220,000        1,460,000     235,763        (1,224,237)    
Fines & Forfeitures 139,000        145,203        172,716        27,513          
Grant Revenue -                  725,169        297,284        (427,885)       
Charges for Services 26,000          26,000          23,657          (2,343)          
Interest -                  -                  393              393              

Total Revenue 1,966,000     4,037,372     2,488,015     (1,549,357)    

EXPENDITURES
Current

General Government 634,200 2,654,626 991,300 1,663,326     
Highways and Streets 1,032,000 1,031,000 329,093 701,907        
Public Safety 913,750 932,250 877,531 54,719          
Cemetery and Parks 298,000 348,000 255,465 92,535          
Culture and Recreation 9,000           9,000           7,296           1,704           

Total Expenditures 2,886,950     4,974,876     2,460,685     2,514,191     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (920,950)       (937,504)       27,330          964,834        

Other Financing Sources
Capital Lease Financing -                  500,000        500,000        -                  
Transfers In -                  -                  9,154           9,154           
Transfers Out -                  (483,446)       (50,907)        432,539        

Total Other Financing Sources -                  16,554          458,247        441,693        

Net Change in Fund Balances (920,950)       (920,950)       485,577        1,406,527     

Fund Balances - Beginning 920,950        920,950        1,314,555     393,605        

Fund Balances - Ending -$                -$                1,800,132$    1,800,132$    

General Fund
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 General 

Police 

Improvement Total

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent 1,703,070$      580$                1,703,650$      
Due From Other Funds 17,029             -                       17,029             

Total Assets 1,720,099$      580$                1,720,679$      

Liabilities

Due to Other Funds 9,075$             -$                     9,075$             

Total Liabilities 9,075               -                       9,075               

Fund Balances

Restricted -                       -                       -                       
Assigned 103,597 580                  104,177           
Unassigned 1,607,427        -                       1,607,427        

Total Fund Balances 1,711,024        580                  1,711,604        

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balances 1,720,099$      580$                1,720,679$       
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 General 

Police 

Improvement Total

REVENUE

Taxes 1,731,520$         -$                     1,731,520$         
License & Permits 26,682               -                       26,682               
Miscellaneous 235,763             -                       235,763             
Fines & Forfeitures 172,716             -                       172,716             
Grant Revenue 297,284             -                       297,284             
Charges for Services 23,657               -                       23,657               
Interest 393                   -                       393                   

Total Revenue 2,488,015           -                       2,488,015           

EXPENDITURES
Current

General Government 565,303             -                       565,303             
Highways and Streets 304,477             -                       304,477             
Public Safety 776,038             -                       776,038             
Cemetery and Parks 107,708             -                       107,708             
Culture and Recreation 7,296                 -                       7,296                 

Capital Outlay
General Government 425,997             -                       425,997             
Cemetery and Parks 208,823             -                       208,823             
Public Safety 40,427               -                       40,427               
Highways and Streets 24,616               -                       24,616               

Debt Service
Principal 82,912               -                       82,912               
Interest 5,616                 -                       5,616                 

Total Expenditures 2,549,213           -                       2,549,213           

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (61,198)              -                       (61,198)              

Other Financing Sources
Debt Proceeds 500,000             -                       500,000             
Transfers In 9,154                 -                       9,154                 
Transfers Out (50,907)              -                       (50,907)              

Total Other Financing Sources 458,247             -                       458,247             

Net Change in Fund Balances 397,049             -                       397,049             

Fund Balances - Beginning 1,313,975           580                   1,314,555           

Fund Balances - Ending 1,711,024$         580$                 1,711,604$         
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Cemetery Volunteer
Care Grant Fire Total

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent 12,104$      16,703$      16,503$      45,310$      
Restricted Cash 51,016        -                  -                  51,016        

Total Assets 63,120$      16,703$      16,503$      96,326$      

Liabilities

Due To Other Funds -$                17,029$      -$                17,029$      

Total Liabilities -                  17,029        -                  17,029        

Fund Balances

Restricted 63,120        (326)            16,503        79,297        

Total Fund Balances 63,120        (326)            16,503        79,297        

Total Liabilities
and Fund Balances 63,120$      16,703$      16,503$      96,326$       
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 Cemetery 

Care  Grant 

 Volunteer 

Fire  Total 

REVENUE

Miscellaneous 1$                -$             2,286$          2,287$          

Charges for Services 5,306           -                  -                  5,306           

Interest 110              -                  -                  110              

Total Revenue 5,417           -                  2,286           7,703           

EXPENDITURES

Current

Public Safety -                  554              987              1,541           

Cemetery and Parks 1,600           -                  -                  1,600           

Capital Outlay

Cemetery and Parks 4,018           -                  -                  4,018           

Total Expenditures 5,618           554              987              7,159           

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures (201)             (554)             1,299           544              

Other Financing Sources

Transfers In 50,907          -                  -                  50,907          
Transfers Out -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total Other Financing Sources 50,907          -                  -                  50,907          

Net Change in Fund Balances 50,706          (554)             1,299           51,451          

Fund Balances - Beginning 12,414          228              15,204          27,846          

Fund Balances - Ending 63,120$        (326)$           16,503$        79,297$         
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Revenue
Received Contract

Federal/State Grantor/ Pass-Though Current Disbursed/
Grantor/ Program Title Year Expended

FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS

Department of Justice
JAG Grant 797$                  797$           

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS 797$                  797$           

STATE & OTHER AWARD PROGRAMS

Okla. Dept. of Agriculture, Food & Forestry
           Volunteer Fire Operational Grant 4,763$               4,763$        

 TOTAL STATE & OTHER AWARD PROGRAMS 4,763$               4,763$        

OTHER FUNDING

ARPA Funds 241,723$           -$           

 

101



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Marietta, Oklahoma

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Marietta, Oklahoma (the “City”), as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 4,  2023. Our report 
included an emphasis-of-a-matter paragraph related to the City’s use of a comprehensive basis of 
accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our 
report also included a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the Marietta 
Public Works Authority, as described in our report on the City’s financial statements. This report does not 
include the results of the other auditor’s testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance 
and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a deficiency 
in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as Finding 2022-
001, that we consider to be a significant deficiency. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards.

City’s Response to Finding

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City’s response 
to the finding identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
responses. The City’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

May 4, 2023
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CITY OF MARIETTA, OKLAHOMA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Finding 2022-001 Segregation of Duties

Criteria: Controls should properly segregate duties so that a single employee does not have access to 
both the physical asset and the related accounting records or to all phases of a transaction.  

Condition: Controls were not always adequately segregated to prevent employees from having 
incompatible duties. 

Cause: Due to the City’s small staff size, certain duties are performed by personnel that would often be 
segregated to other personnel were a larger staff size available. 

Effect: Unauthorized transactions may occur and not be detected due to employees performing 
incompatible duties. 

Recommendation: Management should remain aware of the risk of any incompatible duties and attempt 
to compensate for that risk with increased oversight to the extent feasible.  

Views of Responsive Officials of Auditee: Management will remain aware of the issues with 
segregation of duties. Management will increase oversite as well as stepping in and helping in situations 
where segregation of duties might be an issue when it is feasible to do so.
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General Sanitation Cemetery Grant Volunteer Marietta
Fund Transfer	Site Care	Fund Fund Fire	Fund Municipal	Auth

Revenues
Taxes 1,710,000$             -$                           -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                                 
Charges for Services 35,000                     561,000              7,000.00      -                     -                       -                                  
License and Permits 10,000                     -                             -                      -                     -                       -                                  
Miscellaneous Revenue 301,000                   -                             -                      -                     10,000            -                                  
Fines and Forfeitures 145,000                   -                             -                      -                     -                       -                                  
Interest Income 4,000                        -                             -                      -                     -                       -                                  
Grant Revenue -                            -                             -                      115,000      -                                  
Transfers -                            -                             -                      -                     -                       -                                  

Total Revenues 2,205,000               561,000              7,000            115,000      10,000            -                             

Budgeted Cash Carryover 922,300                   -                             18,000          -                     -                       -                                  
Total	Available	to	Budget 3,127,300$											 561,000$											 25,000$							 115,000$			 10,000$								 ‐$																																

Expenditures
Animal Control 67,000$                   -$                           -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                                 
Cemetery / Park 240,000                   -                             25,000          -                     -                       -                                  
City Administration 226,000                   -                             -                      -                     -                       -                                  
Council 5,500                        -                             -                      -                     -                       -                                  
Legal 16,000                     -                             -                      -                     -                       -                                  
Clerk 14,500                     -                             -                      -                     -                       -                                  
Treasurer 57,000                     -                             -                      -                     -                       -                                  
Code Enforcement 100,000                   -                             -                      -                     -                       -                                  
Emergency Management 3,000                        -                             -                      -                     -                       -                                  
Fire 188,500                   -                             -                      5,000           10,000            -                                  
Library 59,000                     -                             -                      -                     -                       -                                  
Municipal Court 35,000                     -                             -                      -                     -                       -                                  
Operations (formerly Shop) 74,000                     -                             -                      -                     -                       -                                  
Police 632,000                   -                             -                      10,000        -                       -                                  
Street 980,000                   -                             -                      -                     -                       -                                  
General Government 382,000                   -                             -                      100,000      -                       -                                  
Mayor 3,800                        -                             -                      -                     -                       -                                  
Transfers 44,000                     -                             -                      -                     -                       -                                  
Sanitation -                                 391,500              -                      -                     -                       -                                  
Transfer Site -                                 169,500              -                      -                     -                       -                                  

Total	Expenditures 3,127,300$											 561,000$											 25,000$							 115,000$			 10,000$								 ‐$																											
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2023-2024 Budget Worksheet
General Fund

	Original	

2022‐2023	

Budget	

	Amended	2022‐

2023	Budget	

	Actual	Jul	22	‐	

Apr	23	

Estimated	

revenue	

Through	June	

2023	

	Proposed	2023‐

2024	Budget	
	Taxes	
01-00-400 Sales Tax 1,301,000$  1,301,000$         1,035,764$     1,242,917$         1,244,000$         
01-00-401 Use Tax 184,000       184,000              157,906          189,487             190,000             
01-00-402 Alcohol Beverage Tax 102,000       102,000              86,160             103,392             103,000             
01-00-403 Gasoline Excise Tax 5,000            5,000                   3,823                4,588                   5,000                   
01-00-404 Motor Vehicle Tax 26,000         26,000                16,942             20,330                20,000                
01-00-405 Tobacco Tax 10,500         10,500                6,300                7,560                   8,000                   
01-00-410 Franchise Tax 105,000       110,000              115,474          138,569             139,000             
01-00-415 Housing Authority 1,000            1,000                   834                    1,001                   1,000                   

Total Taxes 1,734,500   1,739,500          1,423,203       1,707,844          1,710,000          

Charges	for	Services
01-00-420 Lot Mowing & Clearing 6,000            6,000                   10,229             12,275                12,000                
01-00-421 Cemetery Lots & Open/Close 16,000         16,000                19,038             22,846                23,000                

Total Charges for Services 22,000         22,000                29,267             35,121                35,000                

License	and	Permits
01-00-425 License & Occupational Tax 24,000         24,000                5,275                6,330                   6,000                   
01-00-426 Zoning and Building Fee 5,000            5,000                   3,284                3,941                   4,000                   

Total License and Permits 29,000         29,000                8,559                10,271                10,000                
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2023-2024 Budget Worksheet
General Fund

	Original	

2022‐2023	

Budget	

	Amended	2022‐

2023	Budget	

	Actual	Jul	22	‐	

Apr	23	

Estimated	

revenue	

Through	June	

2023	

	Proposed	2023‐

2024	Budget	
Miscellaneous	Revenue
01-00-430 Animal Control 1,000            1,000                   1,751                2,101                   2,000                   
01-00-431 Miscellaneous 1,000            1,000                   103                    124                      -                       
01-00-432 Grants 70,000         70,000                59,464             71,357                71,000                
01-00-433 Oil and Gas Revenue 35,000         35,000                22,793             27,352                27,000                
01-00-435 Refunds and Reimbursements 190,000       190,000              163,921          196,705             197,000             
01-00-436 Copies and Police Reports 100               100                      42                      50                         -                       
01-00-437 Surplus Property Sales 10,000         10,000                3,454                4,145                   4,000                   
01-00-438 Pandemic / Disaster Reimb 242,000       242,000              244,015          292,818             -                       
01-00-439 Loan Proceeds -                -                       -                     -                       -                       

Total Miscellaneous Revenue 549,100       549,100              495,543          594,652             301,000             

Fines	and	Forfeitures
01-00-440 Fines and Forfeitures 106,000       106,000              87,918             105,502             106,000             
01-00-441 State Assessment Fees 20,000         20,000                16,290             19,548                20,000                
01-00-442 Warrant Charges 2,000            2,000                   1,600                1,920                   2,000                   
01-00-443 Police Improvement Fee 10,000         10,000                8,237                9,884                   10,000                
01-00-444 Police/Court Technology Fee 6,000            6,000                   5,430                6,516                   7,000                   

Total Fines and Forfeitures 144,000       144,000              119,475          143,370             145,000             

Interest	Income
01-00-450 Interest Income 3,000            3,000                   3,288                3,946                   4,000                   

Total Interest Income 3,000            3,000                   3,288                3,946                   4,000                   
Transfers
01-00-500 Transfer In -                47,000                46,850             56,220                -                       

Total Transfers -                47,000                46,850             56,220                -                       

Total Revenue 2,481,600   2,533,600          2,126,185       2,551,424          2,205,000          
Cash Carryover 1,112,400   1,112,400          -                     -                       922,300             
Amount Available to Budget 3,594,000$  3,646,000$         2,126,185$     2,551,424$         3,127,300$         
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City of Marietta
2023-2024 Budget Worksheet

General Fund

Original	2022‐

2023	Budget	

	Amended	

2022‐2023	

Budget	

	Actual	Jul	22	‐	

Apr	23	

	Estimated	

revenue	

Through	

June	2023	

	Proposed	

2023‐2024	

Budget	
Animal	Control

Personnel	Services
01-10-600 Salaries 29,000$           29,000$          30,755$           36,906$         40,000$        
01-10-605 Payroll Taxes 2,400               2,400              2,571                3,085             4,000            
01-10-610 Retirement 2,300               2,300              2,243                2,692             3,000            
01-10-615 Health Insurance 9,500               9,500              7,743                9,292             9,000            
01-10-620 Other 100                   100                  -                     -                  -                 
Materials	and	Supplies
01-10-700 Fuel 4,500               4,500              4,510                5,412             5,000            
01-10-705 Utilities: Telephone 1,000               1,000              582                    698                 1,000            
01-10-710 Supplies 3,000               3,000              725                    870                 1,000            
01-10-715 Maint & Repair 1,000               1,000              1,129                1,355             1,000            
01-10-720 Contract Services 2,000               2,000              1,375                1,650             2,000            
Capital	Outlay
01-10-800 Capital Outlay 6,000               6,000              -                     -                  1,000            

Total Animal Control 60,800             60,800            51,633             61,960           67,000          
Cemetery	/	Park

Personnel	Services
01-15-600 Salaries 60,500             60,500            78,029             93,635           70,000          
01-15-605 Payroll Taxes 5,000               5,000              6,679                8,015             6,500            
01-15-610 Retirement 4,600               4,600              4,242                5,090             4,000            
01-15-615 Health Insurance 9,500               9,500              15,485             18,582           15,000          
01-15-620 Other 2,500               2,500              -                     -                  2,500            
Materials	and	Supplies -                  
01-15-700 Fuel 5,500               5,500              4,718                5,662             6,000            
01-15-705 Utilities 3,000               3,000              2,631                3,157             3,000            
01-15-710 Supplies 11,000             11,000            6,076                7,291             7,000            
01-15-715 Maint & Repair 5,000               5,000              1,020                1,224             1,000            
01-15-720 Contract Services -                    -                   -                     -                  10,000          
Capital	Outlay
01-15-800 Capital Outlay 56,000             56,000            26,806             32,167           50,000          
01-15-805 Improvements - Park 100,000          10,000            5,955                7,146             50,000          
Debt	Service
01-15-900 Loan Payments -                    -                   -                     -                  15,000          

Total Cemetery / Park 262,600          172,600         151,641          181,969         240,000       
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General Fund

Original	2022‐

2023	Budget	

	Amended	

2022‐2023	

Budget	

	Actual	Jul	22	‐	

Apr	23	

	Estimated	

revenue	

Through	

June	2023	

	Proposed	

2023‐2024	

Budget	
City	Administration

Personnel	Services
01-20-600 Salaries 148,000          148,000         129,854          155,825         145,000       
01-20-605 Payroll Taxes 12,000             12,000            10,579             12,695           12,000          
01-20-610 Retirement 11,500             11,500            9,756                11,707           11,000          
01-20-615 Health Insurance 28,000             28,000            24,827             29,792           30,000          
01-20-620 Other 3,000               3,000              -                     -                  3,000            
Materials	and	Supplies
01-20-705 Utilities 2,000               2,000              3,468                4,162             3,000            
01-20-710 Supplies 12,000             12,000            14,418             17,302           10,000          
01-20-715 Maint & Repair 1,000               1,000              3,575                4,290             1,000            
01-20-720 Contract Services 8,000               8,000              11,029             13,235           10,000          
Capital	Outlay
01-20-800 Capital Outlay 200,000          446,000         411,505          493,806         1,000            

Total City Administration 425,500          671,500         619,011          742,814         226,000       
Council

Personnel	Services
01-25-600 Salaries 5,000               5,000              4,040                4,848             5,000            
01-25-605 Payroll Taxes 500                   500                  309                    371                 500                

Total Council 5,500               5,500              4,349                5,219             5,500            
Legal

Materials	and	Supplies
01-30-720 Contract Services 20,000             13,000            9,366                11,239           15,000          
01-30-615 Health Insurance 1,000               1,000              809                    971                 1,000            

Total Legal 21,000             14,000            10,175             12,210           16,000          
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2023-2024 Budget Worksheet

General Fund

Original	2022‐

2023	Budget	

	Amended	

2022‐2023	

Budget	

	Actual	Jul	22	‐	

Apr	23	

	Estimated	

revenue	

Through	

June	2023	

	Proposed	

2023‐2024	

Budget	
Clerk

Personnel	Services
01-35-600 Salaries 3,500               3,500              2,750                3,300             3,000            
01-35-605 Payroll Taxes 500                   500                  210                    252                 500                
01-35-615 Health Insurance 9,500               9,500              7,743                9,292             9,500            
Materials	and	Supplies
01-35-710 Supplies 1,000               1,000              1,159                1,391             1,500            

Total Clerk 14,500             14,500            11,862             14,235           14,500          
Treasurer

Personnel	Services
01-40-600 Salaries 3,500               3,500              2,750                3,300             3,500            
01-40-605 Payroll Taxes 500                   500                  210                    252                 500                
Materials	and	Supplies -                   
01-40-710 Supplies 3,000               3,000              2,775                3,330             3,000            
01-40-720 Contract Services 50,000             50,000            34,231             41,077           50,000          

Total Treasurer 57,000             57,000            39,966             47,959           57,000          
Code	Enforcement

Personnel	Services
01-45-600 Salaries 48,000             48,000            34,481             41,377           45,000          
01-45-605 Payroll Taxes 3,900               3,900              2,815                3,378             3,500            
01-45-610 Retirement 3,600               3,600              2,739                3,287             3,500            
01-45-615 Health Insurance 16,000             16,000            13,526             16,231           15,000          
01-45-620 Other 1,000               1,000              -                     -                  1,000            
Materials	and	Supplies
01-45-700 Fuel 5,000               5,000              3,826                4,591             5,000            
01-45-710 Supplies 3,000               3,000              1,327                1,592             3,000            
01-45-720 Contract Services 4,000               4,000              3,183                3,820             4,000            
Capital	Outlay
01-45-810 Abatements 25,000             10,000            8,298                9,958             20,000          

Total Code Enforcement 109,500          94,500            70,195             84,234           100,000       
Emergency	Management

Materials	and	Supplies
01-50-710 Supplies 1,000               1,000              -                     -                  1,000            
01-50-720 Contract Services 2,000               -                   -                     -                  2,000            

Total Emergency Management 3,000               1,000              -                     -                  3,000            
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Original	2022‐

2023	Budget	

	Amended	

2022‐2023	

Budget	

	Actual	Jul	22	‐	

Apr	23	

	Estimated	

revenue	

Through	

June	2023	

	Proposed	

2023‐2024	

Budget	
Fire

Personnel	Services
01-55-600 Salaries -                    -                   2,260                2,712             -                 
01-55-605 Payroll Taxes 500                   500                  163                    196                 -                 
01-55-610 Retirement 1,500               1,500              1,080                1,296             1,500            
01-55-620 Other 5,000               5,000              -                     -                  10,000          
Materials	and	Supplies
01-55-700 Fuel 2,000               2,000              2,648                3,178             3,000            
01-55-705 Utilities 1,000               1,000              1,370                1,644             2,000            
01-55-710 Supplies 5,000               5,000              7,424                8,909             9,000            
01-55-715 Maint. & Repair 7,000               7,000              7,573                9,088             9,000            
01-55-720 Contract Services 2,500               2,500              2,178                2,614             3,000            
Capital	Outlay
01-55-800 Capital Outlay 100,000          45,000            25,382             30,458           90,000          
Debt	Service
01-55-900 Loan Payments 61,000             61,000            50,889             61,067           61,000          

Total Fire 185,500          130,500         100,967          121,162         188,500       
Library

Materials	and	Supplies
01-60-705 Utilities 3,000               3,000              3,085                3,702             4,000            
01-60-710 Supplies 5,000               5,000              3,318                3,982             4,000            
01-60-715 Maint & Repairs 20,000             5,000              375                    450                 1,000            
Capital	Outlay
01-60-800 Capital Outlay -                    -                   -                     -                  50,000          

Total Library 28,000             13,000            6,778                8,134             59,000          
Municipal	Court

Materials	and	Supplies
01-65-710 Supplies 1,000               1,000              1,191                1,429             1,000            
01-65-720 Contract Services - Judge 6,000               6,000              6,000                7,200             7,000            
01-65-755 CLEET / Forensic Fees 19,000             19,000            15,132             18,158           18,000          
01-65-760 Court Services 9,000               9,000              7,119                8,543             9,000            

Total Municipal Court 35,000             35,000            29,442             35,330           35,000          
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2023-2024 Budget Worksheet

General Fund

Original	2022‐

2023	Budget	

	Amended	

2022‐2023	

Budget	

	Actual	Jul	22	‐	

Apr	23	

	Estimated	

revenue	

Through	

June	2023	

	Proposed	

2023‐2024	

Budget	
Operations

Personnel	Services
01-70-600 Salaries 37,000             37,000            30,046             36,055           38,000          
01-70-605 Payroll Taxes 3,000               3,000              2,535                3,042             3,000            
01-70-610 Retirement 2,800               2,800              2,182                2,618             3,000            
01-70-615 Health Insurance 9,800               9,800              10,582             12,698           13,000          
01-70-620 Other 1,000               1,000              -                     -                  -                 
Materials	and	Supplies
01-70-700 Fuel 3,500               3,500              -                     -                  -                 
01-70-705 Utilities 3,000               3,000              2,554                3,065             3,000            
01-70-710 Supplies 9,000               9,000              7,741                9,289             9,000            
01-70-715 Maint & Repair 3,000               3,000              1,076                1,291             1,000            
07-70-720 Contract Services 2,500               2,500              2,178                2,614             3,000            
Capital	Outlay
01-70-800 Capital Outlay 1,000               1,000              490                    588                 1,000            

Total Operations 75,600             75,600            59,384             71,260           74,000          
Police

Personnel	Services
01-75-600 Salaries 299,000          299,000         235,122          282,146         319,000       
01-75-605 Payroll Taxes 24,000             24,000            19,326             23,191           26,000          
01-75-610 Retirement 22,500             22,500            18,289             21,947           22,000          
01-75-615 Health Insurance 109,000          109,000         103,036          123,643         124,000       
01-75-625 Other 8,000               8,000              -                     -                  -                 
Materials	and	Supplies
01-75-700 Fuel 33,000             33,000            24,987             29,984           30,000          
01-75-705 Utilities 1,000               1,000              761                    913                 1,000            
01-75-710 Supplies 25,000             25,000            16,737             20,084           20,000          
01-75-715 Maint & Repair 12,000             12,000            8,905                10,686           11,000          
01-75-720 Contract Services 10,000             10,000            8,684                10,421           10,000          
01-75-765 Jail / Dispatch Contract 10,000             10,000            7,098                8,518             9,000            
Capital	Outlay
01-75-800 Capital Outlay 50,000             50,000            68,469             82,163           60,000          

Total Police 603,500          603,500         511,414          613,696         632,000       
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General Fund

Original	2022‐

2023	Budget	

	Amended	

2022‐2023	

Budget	

	Actual	Jul	22	‐	

Apr	23	

	Estimated	

revenue	

Through	

June	2023	

	Proposed	

2023‐2024	

Budget	
Street

Personnel	Services
01-80-600 Salaries 110,000          95,000            67,567             81,080           90,000          
01-80-605 Payroll Taxes 8,900               7,900              5,562                6,674             8,000            
01-80-610 Retirement 8,300               7,300              4,986                5,983             7,000            
01-80-615 Health Insurance 50,500             25,500            16,305             19,566           20,000          
01-80-620 Other 3,000               1,000              -                     -                  3,000            
Materials	and	Supplies
01-80-700 Fuel 8,000               8,000              14,959             17,951           18,000          
01-80-705 Utilities: Street Lights 25,000             25,000            24,927             29,912           30,000          
01-80-710 Supplies 10,000             10,000            6,746                8,095             8,000            
01-80-715 Maint. & Repair 8,000               8,000              4,800                5,760             6,000            
Capital	Outlay
01-80-800 Capital Outlay 15,000             15,000            -                     -                  175,000       
01-80-920 Loan Payments 28,000             18,000            9,154                10,985           15,000          
01-80-805 Improvements 750,000          664,000         195,563          234,676         600,000       

Total Street 1,024,700       884,700         350,569          420,682         980,000       
General	Government

Personnel	Services
01-85-615 Health Insurance 130,000          130,000         101,678          122,014         122,000       
Materials	and	Supplies
01-85-705 Utilities 6,000               6,000              6,801                8,161             10,000          
01-85-710 Supplies 10,000             10,000            20,564             24,677           25,000          
01-85-730 Property Insurance 45,000             30,000            48,220             57,864           50,000          
01-85-735 Worker's Comp Insurance 35,000             21,000            32,793             39,352           35,000          
01-85-736 Misc. Expnese -                    -                   9,884                11,861           -                 
Capital	Outlay
01-85-900 Loan Payments 36,000             41,000            33,459             40,151           40,000          
01-85-737 Capital Outlay 242,000          328,000         327,852          393,422         100,000       

Total General Government 504,000          566,000         581,251          697,502         382,000       
Mayor

Personnel	Services
01-90-600 Salaries 3,500               3,500              -                     -                  3,500            
01-90-605 Payroll Taxes 300                   300                  -                     -                  300                

Total Mayor 3,800               3,800              -                     -                  3,800            

01-10-500 Transfer Out 174,500          242,500         242,533          291,040         44,000          

Total Expenditures 3,594,000$     3,646,000$    2,841,170$     3,409,406$   3,127,300$  
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Sanitation Fund

	Original	

2022‐2023	

Budget	

	Actual	Jul	

22‐Apr	23	

Estimated	

expenses	

Through	

June	2023	

	Proposed	

2023‐2024	

Budget	
Revenues

02-00-400 Sanitation - Commercial 140,000$        113,249$     135,899$      136,000$     
02-00-405 Sanitation - Residential 220,000          178,119      213,743       214,000       
02-00-415 Transfer Site 100,000          88,460         106,152       106,000       
02-00-420 Other Revenue 50,000            50,629         60,755          61,000         
02-00-425 Transfer In 174,500          36,454         43,745          44,000         
02-00-450 Interest Income -                   199               239                -                 

Total Revenue 684,500          467,110      560,533       561,000       

Cash Carryover -                        -                     -                      -                      

Amount Available to Budget 684,500$        467,110$     560,533$      561,000$     
Sanitation

Personnel	Services
02-10-600 Salaries 111,000          84,970         101,964       102,000       
02-10-605 Payroll Taxes 8,900              7,185           8,622            9,000            
02-10-610 Retirement 8,300              6,776           8,131            8,000            
02-10-615 Health Insurance 41,000            41,071         49,285          49,000         
02-10-620 Worker's Comp Insurance 6,000              7,489           8,987            9,000            
02-10-625 Other 3,000              -                -                 2,000            
Materials	and	Supplies
02-10-700 Fuel 25,000            29,576         35,491          35,000         
02-10-710 Supplies 10,000            6,989           8,387            8,000            
02-10-715 Maint. & Repair 15,000            22,364         26,837          27,000         
02-10-740 MPWA Fees 12,000            10,545         12,654          13,000         
02-10-745 Tipping Fees 50,000            36,042         43,250          43,000         
Capital	Outlay
02-10-800 Capital Outlay 235,000          -                -                 6,500            
Debt	Service
02-10-900 Loan Payments 42,500            66,776         80,131          80,000         

Total Sanitation 567,700          319,783      383,739       391,500       
Transfer	Site

Personnel	Services
02-11-600 Salaries 35,000            23,804         28,565          29,000         
02-11-605 Payroll Taxes 2,700              2,031           2,437            2,000            
02-11-610 Retirement 2,600              1,930           2,316            2,000            
02-11-615 Health Insurance 16,000            15,766         18,919          19,000         
02-11-620 Worker's Comp Insurance 1,000              1,872           2,246            2,000            
02-11-625 Other 1,000              -                -                 1,500            
Materials	and	Supplies
02-11-700 Fuel 1,500              4,359           5,231            5,000            
02-11-705 Utilities 1,500              1,179           1,415            1,000            
02-11-710 Supplies 3,500              2,653           3,184            3,000            
02-11-715 Maint. & Repair 9,000              886               1,063            1,000            
02-11-720 Contracts 5,000              3,178           3,814            4,000            
02-11-745 Tipping Fees 28,000            24,841         29,809          30,000         
Capital	Outlay
02-11-800 Capital Outlay 10,000            -                -                 70,000         

Total Transfer Site 116,800          82,499         98,999          169,500       
Transfers

02-12-900 Transfer to General Fund -                   36,454         43,745          -                 

Total Expenditures 684,500$        438,736$     526,483$      561,000$     

-                 
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	Original	

2022‐2023	

Budget	

	Actual	Jul	

22‐Apr	23	

Estimated	

expenses	

Through	

June	2023	

	Proposed	

2023‐2024	

Budget	
CEMETERY	CARE	FUND

Revenues
03-00-400 Lot Openings / Closings 5,500$          6,413$        7,696$         7,000$         
03-00-405 Interest Income -                1                 1                  -               
03-00-415 Donations -                -             -              -               

Transfer In -                -             -              -               
Total Revenue 5,500            6,414         7,697          7,000           

Cash Carryover -                -             -              18,000        

Amount Available to Budget 5,500$          6,414$        7,697$         25,000$       

Expenditures
03-10-800 Capital Outlay 5,500$          5,000$        6,000$         25,000$       

Total Expenditures 5,500$          5,000$        6,000$         25,000$       

GRANT	FUND

Revenues
05-00-432 Grant Revenue - JAG 15,000$        10,053$     12,064$      10,000$       
05-00-439 CDBG Grant 50,000         -             -              100,000      
05-00-440 Fire Grant 5,000            -             -              5,000           

Total Revenue 70,000         10,053       12,064        115,000      

Cash Carryover -                -             -              -               

Amount Available to Budget 70,000$        10,053$     12,064$      115,000$    

Expenditures
05-55-800 Fire Grant Expenditures 5,000$          -$            -$             5,000$         
05-75-800 JAG Grant Expenditures 15,000         -             -              10,000        
05-85-800 Grant Expenditures 50,000         83               100             100,000      

Total Expenditures 70,000$        83$              100$            115,000$    

POLICE	ASSET	FORFEITURE

Revenues
06-00-440 Fines and Forfeitures 1,000            -             -              1,000           

Total Revenue 1,000            -             -              1,000           

Cash Carryover -                -             -              -               

Amount Available to Budget 1,000$          -$            -$             1,000$         

Expenditures
06-75-710 Supplies 1,000            -             -              1,000           

Total Expenditures 1,000$          -$            -$             1,000$         
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	Original	

2022‐2023	

Budget	

	Amended	2022‐

2023	Budget	

	Actual	Jul	22	‐	

Apr	23	

	Estimated	

revenue	

Through	June	

2023	

	Proposed	2023‐

2024	Budget	
Miscellaneous	Revenue
70-00-435 Grant Proceeds -                  690,000              165,668          198,802                -                       
70-00-450 Interest Income -                  -                        4                        5                            -                       

Total Miscellaneous Revenue -                  690,000              165,672          198,807                -                       

Transfers
70-00-500 Transfer In -                  85,000                 154,618          185,542                -                       

Total Transfers -                  85,000                 154,618          185,542                -                       

Total Revenue -                  775,000              320,290          384,349                -                       
Cash Carryover -                  -                        -                    -                        -                       
Amount Available to Budget -$               775,000$             320,290$         384,349$             -$                      

General	Government
Materials	and	Supplies
07-10-710 Supplies -                  -                        607                   728                        -                       
07-10-720 Contract Services -                  60,000                 30,000             36,000                  -                       
Capital	Outlay -                  -                        
07-10-805 Capital Outlay -                  715,000              348,705          418,446                -                       

Total General Government -                  775,000              379,312          455,174                -                       

Total Expenditures -$               775,000$             379,312$         455,174$             -$                      
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 RESOLUTION 

 
 

 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR POSITION OF  
OPERATIONS OFFICAL 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Marietta has adopted job descriptions for all positions within the 

City of Marietta; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend from time to time the responsibilities of certain 

positions to perform the duties relative to the functions lawfully imposed upon or assumed by the 
City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to memorialize the approval of duties and 

responsibilities of the Operations Official. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Marietta:  

 
SECTION 1.  The amended job description related to the duties and responsibilities of the 
Operations Official will now include the duties and responsibilities of the Deputy City Clerk. 

 
 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL and SIGNED by the Mayor of the City of Marietta 

this 9th day of May 2023. 
 
        

CITY OF MARIETTA 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       DAVID SPRADLING, MAYOR 
ATTEST       
 
 
_____________________________________ 
DOTTIE GWIN, CITY CLERK 
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